
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/04/25/2013

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  

LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113

THURSDAY, APRIL 25, 2013

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Larry Hudkins, Chair
Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair
Jane Raybould
Roma Amundson

Commissioners Absent: Deb Schorr

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on April 24, 2013

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:30 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE STAFF MEETING MINUTES OF THURSDAY,

APRIL 18, 2013

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded approval of the minutes of the
April 18, 2013 Staff Meeting.  Smoyer, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye. 
Amundson abstained from voting.  Schorr was absent from voting. 
Motion carried 3-0, with one abstention. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

None were stated.

 3 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates (Legislative Consultant)

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, presented a legislative update and a bills of interest
report (Exhibits A and B), noting the next major benchmark will be May 1st when the
Appropriations Committee bill will be advanced to the full Legislature for consideration. 
He noted there is roughly $37,000,000 in discretionary spending left in the budget. 



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/04/25/2013

Discussion took place regarding Legislative Bill (LB) 561 (State findings and intent for
changes to the juvenile justice system and a funding mechanism).  Kohout said an
amendment will likely be offered on Select File to decrease the $10,000,000
appropriation down to $7,000,000 the first year and $6,000,000 the second year.  He
said he is working with Larry Dix, Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO)
Executive Director, on language to address the 10-day provision (the requirement that
the State is responsible for costs after 10 days when a youth in custody is sent out for
evaluation has been deleted from the latest version of the bill).  Kerry Eagan, Chief
Administrative Officer, said failing that, it is important to limit the time to complete the
evaluation to 21 days.

Hudkins said Jim Blue, Cedars Youth Services Executive Director, informed Juvenile
Court Judge Heideman the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has
reduced Cedars funding by 14% and it will no longer be able to accept male boarding
contracts.  

Raybould asked how much is budgeted for juvenile justice programs.  Sheli Schindler,
Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, appeared and said it is approximately
$1,500,000, explaining the funding formula is based on population.  She added there
are concerns that LB 561 only reflects funding for the next two years.  Joe Kelly,
County Attorney, appeared and added that the bill shows youth rehabilitation and
treatment facilities in Geneva and Kearney closing in 2015.  Raybould said she thought 
the intent was to modify those facilities for this new model.  Kelly said that has been
discussed, as well as reducing them to small lock-down facilities.  

Schindler predicted that if LB 561 passes, the County Attorney, Public Defender,
Courts, etc. will have an increased workload and youth will have longer lengths of stay
in YSC.  She said there will also be an increased push for alternatives, which has been
a County expense.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. City-County Common Agenda Items (May 7, 2013)

It was noted there are no agenda items and the City Council Chair has suggested that
the meeting be cancelled.  The Board concurred with the suggestion.

B. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Office Furniture

Eagan asked whether the Board wants to allow County departments to look at what
office furniture might be available for County purposes.  Board consensus was to give
the Crisis Center’s needs priority.



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/04/25/2013

ACTION ITEMS

A. Mini-Grant Application for Litter Removal on County Roads

MOTION: Amundson moved and Smoyer seconded approval, with signature by the
Chair.  Raybould, Smoyer, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr
was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 4 CASE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT WITH LIZ NEELEY, DOING

BUSINESS AS (DBA) OBJECTIVE ADVANTAGE - Joe Kelly, Lancaster
County Attorney; Liz Neeley, DBA Objective Advantage, 

Joe Kelly, Lancaster County Attorney, discussed a proposed agreement with Liz Neeley,
DBA Objective Advantage, for professional consulting services to establish caseload
standards for the County Attorney’s Office.  He noted that Neeley has provided similar
services to the Public Defender’s Office.  Neeley said the information can be used to
make informed workload and caseload decisions, track quality issues and answer policy
questions.  Kelly said the contract will be funded with drug forfeiture funds, so there
will be no cost to the County.

Board consensus was to schedule the contract on the April 30, 2013 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda.

RETURNING TO ITEM 8B

Hudkins said it is the Board’s intent to make CMHC’s office furniture and computers
available to the Crisis Center and the new provider(s).  C. J. Johnson, Region V
Systems Administrator, appeared and said he supports that plan.  He noted 29 of
CMHC’s computers were purchased through the Electronic Behavioral Health
Information Network (eBHIN) and felt any remaining after the Crisis Center has
selected what they need should be returned to eBHIN to be redistributed. 

Johnson indicated that responses to the Request for Proposal (RFP) for community
behavioral health services are due on April 26th and said the RFP Review Committee
will make its recommendations by May 10th.  He said he went outside the Region V
area to select consumers to serve on the RFP Review Committee to avoid the
appearance of a conflict of interest.

 5 LANCASTER COUNTY RURAL BUSINESS ADDRESS COMMITTEE

REPORT - Members of the Lancaster County Rural Business Address
Committee (Tara Garza; Terry Kathe; Arlynn Brunke; Doug Pillard;
Brittany Behrens; John Watson; and Kerry Eagan)  

Eagan noted 911/Emergency Services brought a public safety issue to the attention of
the County Board in February.  A Sheriff’s Deputy had been dispatched to a business



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/04/25/2013

on Saltillo Road but was unable to locate the property in question.  The business was
located on a long private drive serving multiple businesses with a range of addresses. 
There were no address signs posted at either the entrance to the private drive or the
individual businesses.  Since the lack of address signs for rural businesses is a county-
wide safety issue, the Board organized a committee to make recommendations
regarding a policy governing business addresses.  NOTE: The County reviewed rural
residential addresses in 1999 and corrected a number of addresses for public safety
purposes.  Business addresses were not addressed at that time.  The County Board
decided to post uniform blue address signs in the County-owned right-of-way for each
occupied rural residential parcel.  Blue address signs were also posted at the entrance
to private driveways serving multiple addresses but were not posted in front of each
individual residence along the private drive.  That has also caused difficulties for
emergency responders.

The Lancaster County Rural Business Address Committee’s recommendations are as
follows:

• Address signs should be posted on County roads for all businesses which are
included in the County’s address database:
< Standards should be developed for the purpose of classifying which land

uses should be included as a business for purposes of posting address
signs.

< Inaccurate business addresses should be corrected following the same
procedure under which inaccurate residential addresses were corrected.

• The Lancaster County Board should pass a resolution requiring all occupied
residential properties and all business properties to have address signs which
meet County standards:
< Residences and businesses located on private drives serving multiple

properties should be required to provide the address sign at their own
cost.

• The County should develop a strategy, with a funding plan, for replacement
of worn out address signs located on County roads.  Responsibility for sign
placement should be placed with the County Engineer’s Office.

• The County should work with the villages and cities in the County to
implement these recommendations within their extra territorial zoning
jurisdictions.

Eagan said County Engineering has estimated there are 120 rural businesses that do
not have signs, noting 10 do not meet geocoding standards.  He said a replacement
strategy for the signage is also needed, as they fade and lose reflectivity over time.
NOTE: The County initially paid for the signage for rural residences out of the Keno
Fund.  Eagan said it is proposed that any of the signs that are posted in the right-of-
way will be at County expense.  That gives the County control of color, style and
placement. 



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/04/25/2013

Hudkins asked whether the County Engineer’s sign shop could produce the
replacement signage.  Doug Pillard, County Engineering, said it can, provided it is on a
small volume basis.  A large volume would have to be contracted out. 

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Amundson seconded to accept the recommendations
and direct the County Attorney’s Office to prepare a resolution to amend
the County Zoning Regulations to include the new requirements. 
Smoyer, Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 6 ACTION ITEMS

A. Mini-Grant Application for Litter Removal on County Roads

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

 7 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

 8 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. City-County Common Agenda Items (May 7, 2013)
B. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Office Furniture

Items A and B were moved forward on the agenda.

 9 PENDING

There were no pending items.

10 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Advisory Committee -
Raybould

Raybould said she was unable to attend the meeting.  Ron Sorensen, CMHC Executive
Director, appeared and said discussion focused on the budget and consumer concerns
related to the transition to a new provider(s).

11 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items and other business.



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/04/25/2013

12 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:53
a.m.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

__________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk






































































